City of Flint, Michigan

Third Floor, City Hall
1101 S. Saginaw Street
Flint, Michigan 48502
www.cityofflint.com

Meeting Agenda - Final

Wednesday, February 19, 2020
5:00 PM

Committee Room

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE

Santino J. Guerra, Chairperson, Ward 3

Eric Mays, Ward 1 Maurice D. Davis, Ward 2

Kate Fieids, Ward 4 Jerri Winfrey-Carter, Ward 5
Herbert J. Winfrey, Ward 6 Monica Galloway, Ward 7
Allan Griggs, Ward 8 Eva Worthing, Ward 9

Inez M. Brown, City Clerk Davina Donahue, Deputy City Clerk




LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE Meeting Agenda - Final February 19, 2020

ROLL CALL

CHANGES AND/OR ADDITIONS TO AGENDA

Council shall vote on any agenda changes.

PUBLIC SPEAKING

Members of the public shalf have no more than two (2} minutes fo address the City Councit
on any subject.

COUNCIL RESPONSE

Councilpersons may respond fo any public speaker, but only one response and onfy when
all public speakers have been heard. Individual councif response is limited to two {(2)
minutes and is subject to all rules of decorum and discipline.

SPECIAL ORDERS

200059 Special Order/Recreational & Medical Marihuana

A Special Order as requested by Councilperson Worthing to discuss recreational
and medicinal marihuana.

190358.1 Special Order/City of Flint Policies Discussions

A Special Order request by Councilperson Fields aliow Council to include the City's
Computer Use Policy when discussing the three other policies currently on its
agendas (Anti-Bullying; Harassment and Discrimination in the Work Place; Alcchol
& Drug Free Work Place and Testing).

190032 Special Order/COF Purchasing Ordinance/Emergency Purchases

A Special Order as requested by 1st Ward Councilperson Eric Mays to allow for a
council discussion regarding the emergency purchases (Ord. No. 3865, Sec.

18-21.9).
ORDINANCES
190439.1 Amended Ordinance/Amendment/Chapter 12 (Business and Occupations

Generally)/Sections 12-273 through 12-283

An amended ordinance to amend the Code of Ordinances for the City of Flint by
amending Chapter 12 (Business and Occupations Generally), by the addition of
(Article XXX), Sections 12-273 through 12-283 concerning Surveillance Cameras
Required for Certain Businesses. [NOTE: Ordinance amended by Administration.]

200085 Amendment/Ordinance/Chapter 18 (Taxation; Funds: Purchasing)/Article | (In
General)/Section 18-4.1 (Service Charge in Lieu of Taxes for Housing Facilities

City of Flint, Michigan Page 2 Printed on 2/17/2020



LEGISLLATIVE COMMITTEE Meeting Agenda - Final February 19, 2020

for Certain Persons)

An ordinance to amend the Code of the City of Flint by amending Chapter 18,
(Taxation; Funds; Purchasing); Article |, (In General); Section 18-4.1, (Service
Charge in Lieu of Taxes for Housing Facilities for Certain Persons) shall be
amended by adding subsection (CC). [NOTE: The PILOT is for the Grand Flint
Limited Dividend Housing Association, LP, a Michigan Limited Partnership. The
annual service charge for the class of persons of low and moderate income shall
be equal to four (4) percent of the annual shelter rents, exclusive of charges for
gas, electricity, heat or other utilities furnished to the occupants.]

DISCUSSION ITEMS

200083

200084

Referral/Attendance Request/Tane Dorsey

Referral by Councilpersons Fields to OMBUDSPERSON, re: She asks that
Ombudsperson Tane Dorsey attend the next Governmental Operations Committee
meeting to discuss the Human Relations Committee. [Referral Action Date:
2/5/2018 @ Governmental Operations Meeting.]

Referral/Drafting of Ordinance/Civil Service Commission

Referral by Councilpersons Fields to LEGAL re: She asks that the Legal
Department begin drafting an ordinance to allow for employee representation on
the Civil Service Commission, as specified in Section 5-101A(2) of the City Charter.
[Referral Action Date: 2/5/2018 @ Governmental Operations Meeting.]

OLD, OUTSTANDING DISCUSSION ITEMS

170028

170386

180017

Referral/Tax Breaks/Home-Based Businesses

Referral by Councilperson Mays to ADMIN, re: He would like to know if the current
Administration has considered or is working toward offering tax breaks to city
residents with home-based businesses, as well as asks that the City Coungil
consider creating specific legislation in this regard. [Referral Action Date: 1/09/2017
@ City Council Meeting.]

Ordinance Drafts/Water Bills

Referral by Councilperson Mays to MAYOR/ADM/LAW/: He would like two
ordinances drafted for the council to review: 1. water lien relief, and 2. a limit on
how far the city can go back in trying to collect past due water bills that have been
estimated. [Referral Action Date: 7/6/2017 @ Finance Committee Meeting.]

Discussion ltem/Home Business Ordinance

Discussion item proposed by Councilperson Mays, re: He would like a discussion
of the Home Business Ordinance on the next Legislative Agenda. [Referrat Action
Date: 1/3/2018 @ Governmental Operations Committee Meeting.]

City of Flint, Michigan

Page 3 Printed on 2/17/2020



LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE Meeting Agenda - Final February 19, 2020

180304

180443

180533

180534

180576

190033

190362

190386

Referral/CWAC/Ordinance/Discussion

Referral by Councilperson FIELDS to LEGAL/PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT, re:
She would like a copy of the CWAC Ordinance and to have a discussion item
about the CWAC on the Legislative Agenda. [Referral Action Date: 6/20/2018 @
Grants Committee Meeting.]

Discussion ltem/Ordinance Amendment/Blight Infractions

Discussion Item as requested by Councilperson Mays, re: He would like to discuss
the possibility of amending the City Code with regard to blight infractions in order to
include a $500 fine and possible jail time. [Referral Action Date: 8/27/2018 @ City
Council Meseting.]

Referral/Lobbyists/Fee

A referral as requested by Councilperson Fields to LEGAL: She would like to
legislation to require lobbyists to pay fees, as referenced in the new City of Flint
Charter. [Referral Action Date: 10/3/2018 @ Finance Committee Meeting.]

Discussion ltem/Parking on Lots/Property

A discussion item as requested by Councilperson Mays: He would like to discuss
parking on lots and on a homeowner's own property. [Referral Action Date:
5/8/2018 @ Finance Committee Meeting.)

Discussion [tem/Recreational Marihuana

A discussion item as requested by Councilperson Mays, re: He would like to
discuss recreational marihuana. [Referral Action Date: 11/7/2018 @ Legislative
Committee Meeting.]

Discussion item/CWAC Ordinance

Discussion ltem as requested by Councilperson Mays, re: He would like to discuss
the proposed changes to the City Wide Advisory [Council] Committee ordinance
(Ord. No. 180523.2). [Referral Action Date: 2/04/2019 @ City Council Meeting.]

Referral/Copies/Nepotism Policy/Ethics Ordinance

Referral by Councilperson Fields to LEGAL, re: As part of the discussion of the
three policies on the Legislative agenda, she would like copies of the Nepotism
Policy and the Ethics Ordinance. [Referral Action Date: 8/21/2019 @ Special
Legislative Committee Meeting.]

Referral/Ordinance/Sewer Liens

Referral by Councilperson Mays to LEGAL: re, He would like the ordinance that

City of Flint, Michigan

Page 4 Printed on 2/17/2020



LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE Meeting Agenda - Final February 19, 2020

190470

190502

190363

200044

200060

deals with sewer liens. [Referral Action Date: 9/4/2019 @ Finance Committee
Meeting.]

Discussion Item/Acquired Properties Policy

Discussion ltem as requested by Councilperson Fields, re: She would like for the
City Council to work on and expand the City of Flint Palicy of Disposition of
Acquired Genesee County Treasurer Properties (Reso No. 180627). [Referral
Action Date: 10/31/2019 @ Special Affairs Committee.]

Copy/CWAC Ordinance

Discussion ltem as requested by Councilperson Fields, re: She would like a copy of
the City Wide Advisory Councit (CWAC) Ordinance as passed by City Council

(Ord. No. 180523.2). [Referral Action Date: 12/4/2019 @ Finance Committee
Meeting.]

Referral/Legal Opinion/Political Podcast & Facebook

Referral by Councilperson Fields to LEGAL, re: She would like to know if it's legal
for a city employee to tape the Mayor on a podcast and then air it on her own (city
employee) Facebook page. [Referral Action Date: 8/21/2019 @ Special Legislative
Committee Meeting.)

Referral/Parking Meters/Downtown Development Authority (DDA)

Referral by Councilperson Mays to DDA, re: He asks about the possibility of the
following changes to current parking meter charges in the downtown area: (1) Free
parking beginning at 4:30 p.m. near Flint City Hall on City Council meeting dates;
(2) One-hour free parking for anyone coming to City Hall to pay a water bill; (3) No
parking fee for anyone having to do business within City Hall. [Referral Action Date:
1/13/2020 @ City Council Meeting.)

Attendance Request/Mayor/Adm/Surveillance Cameras

An attendance request by Councilperson Guerra to MAYOR/ADM: re, he would like
would like someone from the administration to attend the next Legislative
Committee meeting to discuss Ordinance 1904291 (Surveillance Cameras
Required for Certain Businesses). [Referral Action Date: 1/22/2020 @ Legislative
Committee Meeting.]

NEW BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT

City of Flint, Michigan

Page 5 Printed on 2/17/2020



/

S GOVERN THE
CONSTRUCTION, MEANING,
AND APPLICATION OF THE
FOLLOWING WORDS AND
PHRASES USED IN THIS

ORDINANCENO. .

An Ordinance to amend the Flint
City Code of Ordinances by amending
Chapter 12, Business and Occupations
Generaliy.

CHAPTER.
IT IS HEREBY ORDANIED BY THE (1) LUMEN, THE SI DERIVED
PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF FLINT: UNTI OF LUMNIOUS FLUX;
A MEAUSRE OF THE TOTAL

Sec. 1. An Ordinance to amend the
Flint City Code of Ordinances by amending
Chapter 12, Business and Occupations
Generally, In General, by adding Article
XXX. Sections 12-273 thru 12-283.
Surveillance Cameras Required for Certain

AMOUNT OF VISIBLE LIGHT
EMITTED BY A SOURCE.

{2} MEDIA. MATERIAL ON
WHICH AUDIO, VIDEO, AND
ELECTRONIC DATA CAN BE

. ) et TorLe RECORDED FOR THE

Businesses, which shall read in its entirety PURPOSES OF MAKING A
as follows: PERMANENT RECORD TO
$12-273. PURPOSE. AID IN A CRIMINAL

o I INVESITGATION. THAT CAN

FHE CITY COUNCIL BE ENLARGED THROUGH
RECOGNIZES THAT CERTAIN PROJECTION OR OTHER
BUSINESSES HAVE MEANS. IN A FORMAT ABLE
CHARACTERISTICS THAT MAY TEND TO BE UTILIZED BY THE

TO INCREASE THE POTENTIAL RISK
OF CRIMINAL ACTIVITY ON THEIR
PREMISES. THIS CHAPTER IS
ENACTED TO REDUCE THE
LIKELIHOOD THAT EMPLOYEES AND (3) OWNER. THE INDIVIDUAL,
PATRONS OF THOSE BUSINESSES CORPORATION, LIMITED
WILL BE EXPOSED TO POTENTIAL COMPANY, PARTNERSHIP,
DEATH AND/OR INJURIES BECAUSE JOINT VENTURE. OR OTHER
OF CRIME OCCURRING ON THE GROUP ENTERPRISE
PREMISES. IT IS ALSO INTENDED TO LICENSED TO DO BUSINESS
ASSIST LAW ENFORCEMENT WITH OR OTHERWISE OPERATING
THE CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION OF A BUSINESS

CRIMES ON THE PREMISES OF THE ESTABLISHMENT AT A
BUSINESSES WHICH ARE THE LOCATION WITHIN THE
SUBJECT OF THIS CHAPTER.

POLICE DEPARTMENT,
COUNTY PROSECUTOR.
AND /OR OTHER LAW
ENFORCEMENT AGENCY.

CITY.
§ 12-274. DEFINITIONS {4} VIDEO SURVEILLANCE
SYSTEM. A CONTINUOUS
(A)THE DEFINITIONS AND DIGITAL SURVEILLANCE
PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN SYSTEM CONSISTING OF

THIS SECTION SHALL CAMERAS, CABLING,



MONITORS, AND DIGITAL
VIDEO RECORDERS (DVR)
THAT RECORD IN COLOR
WITH CAMERAS AND
LENSES OF ATYPEL,
MINIMUM RESOLUTION,
NUMBER AND LOCATION
APPROVED BY THE CHIEF
OF POLICE OR HIS OR HER
DESIGNEE.

(5) BUSINESS

ESTABLISHMENT OR
ESTABLISHMENT. MEANS
THOSE ESTABLISHMENTS
LISTED AND DEFINED IN
THIS SUBSECTION AS
FOLLOWS:

a. BANKOR
FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION. AN
ESTABLISHMENT
WHOSE PRIMARY
FUNCTION IS
RELATED TO THE
CUSTODY. LOAN,
EXCHANGE,
ISSUANCE OF
MONEY, EXTENSION
OF CREDIT, OR
TRANSMISSION OF
FUNDS, AND
INCLUDES BANKS,
CREDIT UNIONS, OR
SAVINGS OR LOANS.

b. CARRY OUT- FOOD
AND DRINK. AN
ESTABLISHMENT
WHOSE PRINCIPAL
BUSINESS IS THE
SALE OF FOOD AND
BEVERAGES IN
DISPOSABLE
CONTAINERS IN A

READY-TO-CONSUME
STATE FOR
CONSUMPTION
EITHER WITHIN THE
BUILDING OR FOR
CARRY-OUT WITH
CONSUMPTION OFF
THE PREMISES,
WHOSE CASH
REGISTER IS VISIBLE
TO THE PUBLIC VIEW,
NOTWITHSTANDING
THE FOREGOING, A
CARRY OUT-FOOD
AND DRINK
ESTABLISHMENT
SHALL NOT BE
SUBJECT TO THIS
CHAPTER IF IT
EITHER (A) SHARES A
COMMON AREA WITH
OTHER BUSINESSES
OR (B) DOES NOT
HAVE ITS OWN
ENTRANCE OR EXIT,
STRICTLY, FOR
PURPOSES OF
ILLUSRATION, A
BUSINESS, WHICH IS
PART OF A SO
CALLED FOOD
COURT, SHALL NOT
BE SUBJECT TO THIS
CHAPTER.

CHECK CASHING
BUSINESS. A
BUSINESS OFFERING
PAYDAY LOANS,
CASH ADVANCES, OR
CHECK ADVANCE
LOANS, AND WHICH
IS REGULATED
UNDER THE STATE



d.

OF MICHIGAN
DEFERRED
PRESENTMENT
SERVICES
TRANSACTION.
PUBLIC ACT 244 OF
2005, AS AMENDED.
OR ANY SIMILAR
LAW.

COIN DEALER. ANY
ESTABLISHMENT
THAT, AS A
SUBSTANTIAL
PORTION OF ITS
BUSINESS, BUYS AND
SELLS COINS, GOLD
OR OTHER PRECIOUS
METALS.
CONVENIENCE
STORE. A BUSINESS
WHICH SELLS AT
RETAIL BOTH
GASOLINE AND
MORE THAN 20
“CONSUMER
PRODUCTS" AS THAT
TERM IS DEFINED BY
15 USCS §2052 (5)
[TITLE 15.
COMMERCE AND
TRADE; CHAPTER 47,
CONSUMER PRODUCT
SAFETY], OR ANY
APPLICABLE
SUCCESSOR LAW.
FIREARM DEALER.
AN ESTABLISHMENT
REQUIRED TO
OBTAIN A FEDERAL
FIREARMS LICENSE
TO SELL FIREARMS
AND WHICH
ENGAGES IN

FIREARMS
TRANSACTIONS.

. GAS STATIONS. A

RETAIL
ESTABLISHMENT AT
WHICH MOTOR
VEHICLES ARE
REFUELED.

. HOTEL OR MOTEL.

ANY BUILDING OR
STRUCTURE
EQUIPPED, USED,
ADVERTISED AS, OR
HELD OUT TO THE
PUBLIC AS A
FACILITY OR PLACE
WHERE SLEEPING
QUARTERS OR
OTHER SIMILAR
ACCOMODATIONS
ARE FURNISHED FOR
A FEE TO TRANSIENT
GUESTS.

LIQUOR OR
ALCOHOL BUSINESS.
ANY RETAILER
REQUIRED TO
OBTAIN A PERMIT BY
THE MICHIGAN
LIQUOR CONTROL
COMMISSION, WHICH
AUTHORIZES THE
SALE OF BEER, WINE,
OR DISTILLED
SPIRITS TO BE
CONSUMED ON, OR
OFF THE PREMISES
WHERE SOLD, AND
INCLUDES BREW
PUBS, DISTILLERIES,
OR OTHER
SIMILARLY
LICENSED



FACILITIES. IT SHALL
ALSO INCLUDE
THOSE FACILITIES
NOT REQUIRED TO
OBTAIN SUCH
PERMIT BUT WHICH,
DIRECTLY OR
INDIRECTLY
THROUGH A LEASE
OR RENTAL OF THE
PREMISES, ALLOWS
BEER, WINE, OR
DISTILLED SPIRITS
TO BE CONSUMED ON
PREMISES.

MOBILE
COMMUNICATIONS
DEALER. ANY
RETAILER OF A
WIRELESS TWO-WAY
COMMUNICATION
DEVICE, INCLUDING
A TELEPHONE USED
IN CELLULAR
TELEPHONE SERVICE,
WHICH REPRESENTS,
ALONG WITH
ACCESSORIES
RELATED THERETQ,
MORE THAN 50% OF
THE GOODS
DISPLAYED FOR
RETAIL PURCHASE.

. MONEY

TRANSMISSION
SERVICES. A
RETAILER SELLING
OR ISSUING
PAYMENT
INSTRUMENTS OR
STORED VALUE
DEVICES OR IS
RECEIVING MONEY

m.

OR MONETARY
VALUE FOR
TRANSMISSION,
PHARMACY. A
FACILITY OR PART
OF A FACILITY THAT
DISPENSES
PRESCRIPTION
DRUGS, OR PREPARES
PRESCRIPTION
DRUGS FOR
DELIVERY OR
DISTRIBUTION, BUT
DOES NOT INCLUDE
THE OFFICE OF A
DISPENSING
PRESCRIBER OR AN
AUTOMATED DEVICE.
SCRAP METAL
DEALER. MEANS
ANY PERSON
OPERATING A
BUSINESS AT AFIXED
OR MOBILE
LOCATION THAT IS
ENGAGED IN ONE OF
THE FOLLOWING
ACTIVITIES:

i. BUYING.
SELLING,
PROCURING,
COLLECTING,
GATHERING.
SOLICITING, OR
DEALING IN
SCRAP METAL,

it. OPERATING,
MANAGING, OR
MAINTAINING
A SCRAP
METAL YARD,

§12-275 LIGHTING.



EVERY BUSINESS
ESTABLISHMENT IN THE CITY,
UNLESS THE STORE IS NOT OPEN FOR
BUSINESS AFTER SUNSET AND
BEFORE SUNRISE. IS HEREBY
REQUIRED TO INSTALL AND
PROVIDE LIGHTING FOR ITS PARKING
AREA DURING ALL HOURS OF
DARKNESS WHEN EMPLOYEES
AND/OR CUSTOMERS ARE ON THE
PREMISES., SUCH LIGHTING SHALL BE
AT A MINIMUM AVERAGE OF TWO
LUMENS PER SQUARE FOOT.

§ 12-276 VIDEO SURVEILLANCE
SYSTEM REQUIRED.

(A)EVERY BUSINESS
ESTABLISHMENT, AS DEFINED
IN THIS CHAPTER, IS HERERY
REQUIRED TO INSTALL A
VIDEO SURVEILLANCE
SYSTEM IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THIS CHAPTER AND TO
PROVIDE THE CHIEF OF POLICE
OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE AN
ADDRESS AND PHONE
NUMBER TO BE USED FOR
PURPOSES OF OFFICIAL
NOTIFICATIONS REGARDING
ENFORCEMENT OF THIS
CHAPTER.

(BYALL VIDEO SURVEILLANCE
SYSTEMS SHALL:

a. BEMAINTAINED IN
PROPER WORKING
ORDER AT ALL TIMES:
AND

b. BEKEPT IN
CONTINUOUS
OPERATION 24 HOURS A
DAY, 7DAYS A WEEK;
AND

¢. MEET MINIMUM
TECHNOLOGICAL
STANDARDS
ESTABLISHED IN THIS
CHAPTER OR BY
RESOLUTION OF CITY
COUNCIL.

(CYALL ESTABLISHMENTS SHALL

RETAIN THE IMAGES
RECORDED BY ITS VIDEO
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM FOR
NO LESS THAN THIRTY (30)
DAYS.

(D) A MINIMUM OF THREE HIGH

RESOLUTION SURVEILLANCE
CAMERAS LLOCATED IN THE
PUBLIC AREAS OF A BUSINESS
ESTABLISHMENT ARE
REQUIRED OF EACH VIDEO
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM. AT
LEAST ONE CAMERA SHALL
PROVIDE AN OVERALL VIEW
OF THE COUNTER AND
REGISTER AREA; AT LEAST
ONE CAMERA SHALL BE
POSITIONED TO PROVIDE A
CLEAR, IDENTIFIABLE, FULL-
FRAME IMAGE OF THE FACE
OF EACH PERSON ENTERING
AND LEAVING THE BUSINESS
ESTABLISHMENT; AND THE
LEAST ONE CAMERA SHALL BE
POSITIONED TO PROVIDE AN
OVERALL VIEW OF THE
BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT’S
PARKING LOT. CAMERA VIEWS
SHALL NOT BE OBSTRUCTED
BY STORE FIXTURES OR
DISPLAYS.

(E) BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENTS,

WHICH INSTALLED VIDEO
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS
PRIOR TO THE EFFECTIVE



DATE OF THIS CHAPTER, MUST
ENSURE THEY ARE IN FULL
COMPLIANCE WITH THIS
CHAPTER.

(F) DOCUMENTATION
EVIDENCING THE
INSTALLATION OF SUCH
SYSTEM MUST BE PRESENTED
TO THE POLICE DEPARTMENT,
WHO SHALL VERIFY
COMPLIANCE WITH THIS
CHAPTER. THE SUFFICIENCY
OF SUCH DOCUMENTATION
SHALL BE DETERMINED AT
THE DISCRETION OF THE
POLICE CHIEF OR HIS OR HER
DESIGNEE. UPON APPROVAL
OF SUCH DOCUMENTATION,
THE POLICE DEPARTMENT
WILL ISSUE A WRITTEN
APPROVAL NOTICE, WHICH
WILL BE PLACED IN PLAIN
VIEW INSIDE THE PREMISES.
THIS APPROVAL NOTICE WILL
ALSO INFORM CUSTOMERS
AND EMPLOYEES OF THE
EXISTENCE OF THE VIDEO
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM. A
COPY OF THE APPORVAL
NOTICE OR OTHER
VERIFICATION OF
COMPLIANCE SHALL THEN BE
TRANSMITTED BY THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT TO THE CITY
CLERK. SUCH VERIFICATION
MUST BE ON RECORD AND UP-
TO-DATE AT THE TIME OF A
BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT'S
APPLICATION FOR OR
RENEWAL OF A BUSINESS
LICENSE OR SUCH LICENSE
SHALL BE DENIED.

§12-277 ACCESS TO MEDIA.

iF A CRIME OCCURS OR AN
EMPLOYEE OF A BUSINESS
ESTABLISHMENT BELIEVES A
CRIME HAS OCCURRED, THE
POLICE DEPARTMENT SHALIL BE
CONTACTED IMMEDIATELY, AND
THE BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT
SHALL RETAIN THE CONTINUQOUS
DIGITAL IMAGES OF THE EVENT
RECORDED BY THE VIDEC
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM FOR NO
LESS THAN 60 DAYS. SUBJECT TO
ANY CONSTITUTIONAL
RESTRICTIONS, UPON
REASONABLE NOTIFICATION, THE
BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT
SHALL PROVIDE ACCESS TO THE
MEDIA CONTAINING THE
RECORDED EVENT TO THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT. FAILURE TO
PROVIDE ACCESS TO THE VIDEO
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM MAY
RESULT IN THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT OR OTHER LAW
ENFORCEMENT AGENCY MAKING
A REQUEST FOR A SEARCH
WARRANT TO SEIZE THE VIDEO
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM, OR ANY
PART OR UNIT OF THE SYSTEM.
DEPENDING ON THE NATURE OF
THE INCIDENT.

§12-278 MINIMUM
TECHNOLOGICAL STANDARDS.

THE VIDEO SURVEILLANCE
SYSTEM MUST BE CAPABLE OF
DELINEATING ON PLAYBACK OF
THE SYSTEM THE ACTIVITY AND
PHYSICAL FEATURES OF PERSONS
OR AREAS WITHIN THE PUBLIC
AREAS OF THE PREMISES AND
MUST BE ABLE TO RECORD SUCH
IMAGES ON AN APPROVED FORM



OF EXTERNAL MEDIA. THE
CONTINOUS DIGITAL IMAGES
RECORDED BY ANY VIDEO
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM SHALL
BE RETAINED FOR NO LESS THAN
30 DAYS. CAMERAS PLACED
OUTDOORS OR IN LOW LIGHT
AREAS MUST HAVE INFARED
ILLUMINATORS. ADDITIONAL
MINIMUM TECHNOLOGICAL
STANDARDS ARE REQUIRED FOR
VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS
SHALL BE ESTABLISHED BY
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY
COUNCIL, WHICH MAY BE
UPDATED PERIDOCIALLY. THE
POLICE DEPARTMENT SHALL
REVIEW THE VIDEC
SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM
STANDARDS BI-ANNUALLY TO
ENSURE THAT THEY ARE
CONSISTENT WITH CURRENT
TECHNOLOGY AND SHALL
RECOMMEND APPROPRIATE
UPDATES TO THE CITY COUNCIL
WHEN NECESSARY.

§12-279 INSPECTIONS.

THE VIDEO SURVEILLANCE
SYSTEM SHALL BE SUBJECT TQ
INSPECTION BY THE CHIEF OF
POLICE OR HIS'HER DESIGNEE,
WHO IS AUTHORIZED TO INSPECT
ANY SUCH SYSTEM AT
REASONABLE TIMES TO
DETERMINE WHETHER IT
CONFORMS WITH THIS CHAPTER
AND REGULATIONS AND
STANDARDS ADOPTED BY CITY
COUNCIL RESOLUTION
PURSUANT THERETO. IF THE
VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM
DOES NOT SO CONFORM, THE

ESTABLISHMENT IN QUESTION
SHALL TAKE IMMEDIATE STEPS
TO BRING THE SYSTEM BACK
INTO COMPLIANCE THEREWITH.

$12-280 ENFORCEMENT

(A)BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENTS
SUBJECT TO THE MANDATORY
REQUIREMENTS OF THIS
CHAPTER SHALL HAVE ONE
YEAR FROM THE EFFECTIVE
DATE OF THIS CHAPTER TO
COMPY WITH THE
REGULATIONS SET FORTH
HEREIN,

(B) VIOLATION OF ANY
PROVISION OF THIS CHAPTER
BY ANY OWNER OR PRINCIPAL
OPERATOR OF AN
ESTABLISHMENT SHALL
RESULT IN A NOTICE OF
VIOLATION FROM THE CHIEF
OF POLICE OR HIS’HER
DESIGNEE TO SAID
ESTABLISHMENT AT THE
ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE
ESTABLISHMENT PURSUANT
TO §12-276(A).

{C) THE NOTICE OF VIOLATION
REQUIRED UNDER THIS
SECTION SHALL BE IN
WRITING, SET FORTH THE
BASIS OF THE VIOLATION, AND
INFORM THE OWNER OR
PRINICPAL BUSINESS
OPERATOR OF THE
ESTABLISHMENT THAT HE/SHE
HAS TEN DAYS FROM THE
DATE OF MAILING OF THE
NOTICE TO FILE A WRITTEN
REQUEST FOR AN
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING TO
APPEAL THE FINDING OF



VIOLATION TO THE CITY
ADMINISTRATOR OR HIS/HER
DESIGNEE. THE
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING
SHALL BE HELD WITHIN 10
DAYS AFTER THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT RECEIVES A
TIMELY REQUEST FOR A
HEARING, BUT IN NO EVENT
SOONER THAN FIVE DAYS OR
LATER THAN 20 DAYS AFTER
RECEIPT OF A TIMELY
REQUEST FOR A HEARING.

(DYAT THE ADMINISTRATIVE

HEARING, FORMAL RULES OF
EVIDENCE SHALL NOT APPLY.
THE PARTY FOR WHOM THE
NOTICE OF VIOLATION WAS
ISSUED SHALL BE ENTITLED
TO PRESENT EVIDENCE,
INCLUDING THE TESTIMONY
OF WITNESSES AND
ARGUMENT AS TO WHY THE
FINDING OF A VIOLATION WAS
INCORRECT.

(E} FOLLOWING THE HEARING,

THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR OR
HIS’'HER DESIGNEE SHALL
RENDER A WRITTEN DECISION
EITHER SUSTAINING OR
REVERSING THE FINDING OF A
VIOLATION. WITHIN ONE-
WEEK FOLLOWNG THE
HEARING, THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT SHALL SEND
THE WRITTEN DECISION TO
THE PARTY FOR WHOM THE
NOTICE OF VIOLATION WAS
ISSUE.

(F) IF NO REQUEST FOR

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING IS
FILED, OR IF A HEARING IS
REQUESTED BUT THE FINIDNG

OF A VIOLATION 1S
THEREAFTER SUSTAINED.,
VIOLATORS SHALL HAVE 30
DAYS AFTER RECEIPT OF THE
NOTICE OF VIOLATION OR
DECISION SUSTAINING THE
FINIDING, AS THE CASE MAY
BE. TO PROVDE THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT PROOF THE
VIOLATION HAS BEEN
CORRECTED. IF THE
VIOLATION CONTINUES AFTER
THE 30-DAY PERIOD, THE
CHIEF OF POLICE OR HIS OR
HER DESIGNEE SHALL REFER
THE MATTER TO THE CITY
ATTORNEY'S OFFICE FOR
PROSECUTION AS PROVDED
BY LAW,

{(ANY VIOLATION OF OR
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH
THIS CHAPTER OR ANY OF THE
REQUIRMENTS THEREOF,
SHALL BE PROSECUTED
WITHIN THE LIMITS PROVIDED
BY STATE AND LOCAL LAWS.
SAID PROSECUTION BY MEANS
OF A CITATION FOR
MUNICIPAL INFRACTION FOR
PURPOSES OF THIS CHAPTER.
EACH 30 DAY PERIOD THAT A
VIOLATION CONTINUES SHALL
BE A SEPARATE VIOLATION.

§12-281 EXEMPTIONS.

A BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT
WHICH IS REQUIRED TO INSTALL
A VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM
MAY BE EXEMPT FROM THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THIS
ORDINANCE IF



(A)THE ESTABLISHMENT IS NOT
REGULARY OPEN TO THE
FUBLIC (INCLUDING STRICTLY
BY WAY OF EXAMPLE, A HOME
BASED BUSINESS)

(B) THE ESTABLISHMENT HAS
TAKEN OR WILL TAKE
ALTERNATIVE SECURITY
MEASURERS AND
PROCEDURES WHICH ARE
SUBSTANTIALLY EQUAL TO
OR MORE EFFECTIVE THAN
THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS
CHAPTER IN PREVENTING
CRIMINAL ACTIVITY AND
ASSISTING IN THE
APPREHENSION OF THE
PERPETRATORS OF CRIME OR
THE PROTECTION OF
EMPLOYEES AND PATRONS;
AND

(CYTHE ESTABLISHMENT HAS
BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE
CHIEF OF POLICE OR HIS/HER
DESIGNEE TO IMPLEMENT
ALTERNATE SECURITY
MEASURES AND PROCEDURES
ON AN EXPERIMENTAL BASIS.
WITHIN TEN DAYS OF MAILING
OF THE WRITTEN NOTICE OF
VIOLATION, THE OWNER OF
THE BUSINESS
ESTABLISHMENT MAY APPEAL
THE ALLEGED VIOLATION BY
REQUESTING A HEARING
BEFORE ADMINISTRATOR OR
THEIR DESIGNEE. SUCH A
REQUEST MUST BE MADE IN
WRITING AND MUST SET FOR
THE SPECIFIC GROUNDS FOR
APPEAL.

(D) THE ESTABLISHMENT IS A
MEDICAL MARIHUANA

FACILITY AS DEFINED IN §50-
183 AND SUBJECT TO THE
SECURITY REQUIREMENTS OF
§50-183(E) (2 X1,

ANY ESTABLISHMENT, WHICH
SEEKS AN EXEMPTION PURSUANT
TO THIS SECTION, SHALL APPLY,
ON AN ANNUAL BASIS, TO THE
CHIEF OF POLICE OR HIS'HER
DESGINEE FOR EXEMPTION FROM
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS
CHAPTER. THE APPLICATION
SHALL BE IN WRITING AND
SHALL STATE THE BASIS FOR THE
EXEMPTION SOUGHT IN
SUFFICIENT DETAIL TO ENABLE
THE CHIEF OF POLICE OR
DESIGNEE TO DETERMINE
WHETHER THE PURPOSES OF THIS
CHAPTER WOULD STILL BE MET
[F THE EXEMPTION WERE
GRANTED,

AN EXEMPTION GRANTED
PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION
SHALL CARRY A MAXIMUM
DURATION OF TWELVE MONTHS.
ANY ESTABLISHMENT SEEKING
TO EXTEND STATUS MUST
REAPPLY FOR AN EXEMPTION NO
LATER THAN 30 DAYS PRIOR TO
THE END OF THE EXEMPTION
PERIOD.

ANY ESTABLISHMENT WHICH
HAS BEEN GRANTED AN
EXEMPTION UNDER THIS
SECTION, OR AN EXTENSION
THEREOF, WHICH DOES NOT SEEK
TO FURTHER EXTEND THE
EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO
SECTION, SHALL OBTAIN THE
CITY'S APPROVAL OF A VIDEQ



SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM NO
LATER THAN 30 DAYS PRIOR TO
THE END OF THE EXEMPTION
PERIOD.

THE CHIEF OF POLICE OR HIS'HER
DESIGNEE MAY ALSO AUTHORIZE
TEMPORARY EXTENSIONS OF
TIME FOR INSTALLATION OF A
VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM
WHEN AN ESTABLISHMENT
DEMONSTRATES TO THE
SATISFACTION OF THE CITY THAT
IT IS TEMPORARILY UNABLE TO
COMPLY FOR GOOD CAUSE
SHOWN.

ANY PARTY AGGRIEVED BY THE
DENIAL OF AN EXEMPTION
UNDER THIS SECTION MAY
REQUEST A HEARING AS
PROVIDED IN SECTION 12-281. THE
DECISION RENDERED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 12-281 SHALL BE THE
FINAL DECISION OF THE CITY.

Sec. 2. This ordinance shall become
effective immediately upon publication.

Adopted this ________ dayof
L2019 AD.

Dr. Karen W, \Ve;ver, ;;ila}’cr

Inez M. Brown, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Angela Wheeler, Chief Legal Officer

10



ORDINANCE NO.

An ordinance to amend the Code of the
City of Flint by amending Chapter 18, Taxation;
Funds; Purchasing; Article I, In General; Section
18-4.1, Service Charge in Lieu of Taxes for
Housing Facilities for Certain Persons.

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY PEOPLE OF
THE CITY OF FLINT:

Sec. 1. That the provisions of Chapter 18,
Taxation; Funds; Purchasing; Article I, In
General; Section 18-4.1, Service Charge in Lieu
of Taxes for Housing Facilities for Certain
Persons, shall be amended by adding subsection
(CC), which shall read in its entirety as follows:

(CC) THE CITY ACKNOWLEDGES
THAT THE GRAND FLINT LIMITED
DIVIDEND HOUSING ASSOCIATION, LP,
A MICHIGAN LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
(THE “OWNER”) HAS OFFERED, SUBJECT
TORECEIPT OF AN AUTHORITY-AIDED OR
FEDERALLY-AIDED MORTGAGE LOAN
AND/OR ALLOCATION OF LOW INCOME
HOUSING TAX CREDITS FROM THE
MICHIGAN STATE HOUSING AND
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (“MSHDA"),
TO OWN AND OPERATE A HOUSING
PROJECT IDENTIFIED AS “THE GRAND”
(THE “PROJECT”) ON CERTAIN PROPERTY
LOCATED IN THE CITY TO SERVE
PERSONS AND FAMILIES OF LOW
INCOME, AND THAT THE SPONSOR HAS
OFFERED TO PAY THE CITY ON ACCOUNT
OF THIS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AN
ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE FOR PUBLIC
SERVICES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM
TAXES.

THE CITY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT
THE SPONSOR SHALL BE AFFORDED TAX
BENEFITS OF PAYING A SERVICE CHARGE

IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES (BUT
NOT IN LIEU OF PAYMENT OF SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, THE STREET LIGHTING
SPECIAL  ASSESSMENT). THE CITY
FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE
SPONSOR FITS WITHIN THE CLASS AS
DESCRIBED IN §18-43 BELOW. THE
ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE FOR THE
CLASS OF PERSONS OF LOW AND
MODERATE INCOME SHALIL BE EQUAL TO
FOUR PERCENT (4%) OF THE ANNUAL
SHELTER  RENTS, EXCLUSIVE OF
CHARGES FOR GAS, ELECTRICITY, HEAT,
OR OTHER UTILITIES FURNISHED TO THE
OCCUPANTS, INCLUDING THE PORTION
OF RENT PAYABLE UNDER ANY
GOVERNMENTAL SUBSIDY.
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING,
THE ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE SHALL
NOT EXCEED AD VALOREM PROPERTY
TAXES THAT WOULD BE ASSESSED OR
PAID ABSENT THIS TAX EXEMPTION.

Sec. 2. This ordinance shall become
effective immediately upon publication.

Adopted this day of

, 2020 A.D.

Sheldon A. Neeley, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Angela Wheeler, Chief Legal Officer



ORDINANCE REVIEW FORM

FROM:  Planning and Development NO. 20-
Depariment Law Office Login #

ORDINANCE NAME:
PILOT ORDINANCE RESOLUTION TO GRANT A FOUR (4%) PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILOT)

TO PROJECT AT 422 W UNIVERSITY, TO BE CALLED "THE GRAND", PROVIDING 48 UNITS OF
AFFORDABLE HOUSING TO LOW AND MODERATE INCOME RESIDENTS.

1. ORDINANCE REVIEW - DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR

The attached ORDINANCE is approved by the Director of the affected Department. By signing, the Director
approves this ordinance to be processed for signatures and fully executed.

zanne Wiicox, Director, P&D

By: Director /«;W Lwﬁi i DATE: I~ / AL

2. ORDINANCE REVIEW-FINANCE DEPARTMENT

The attached ORDINANCE is submitted to the Finance Department for approval. By signing, the Finance
Department approves this ordinance to be processed for signatures and fully executed.

By: DATE:
Amanda Trujillo, Acting Chief Financial Officer

3. ORDINANCE REVIEW - LAW DEPARTMENT

The attached ORDINANZE i submilted, to the Legal Department for approval. By signing, the Legal
Department approves tiis ordinancg to pe propgssed for signatures and fully executed.

DATE: 9 ~ / /7/’00 05?0

This RESOLUTION may now go to Mayor for signature and approval.

By:
Angela Wheeler, Chief Legal Offife




The Grand an University, 422 W University Ave tax comparisons

1} Current taxable generated: 51,100 Pilot is based on 4%
2} PILOT estimation $16,631.24 DIFFERENCE BETWEEN PILOT AND AD VALOREM TAX $38,355 per year

Based on the Schedule of Rents provided by Communities First, tnc., at 100% occupancy, given its rental rates far households at 30%,
40%, and 60% of AM, the total annual rent potential for the 48 units is $415, 781,

3} Estimated project ad valorum taxable value:

One Bedroom Two Bedroom  Three Bedroom
Market Rent 5600 $875 $1,000
Number of Units 20 21 7
$12,000 $18,375 57,000
Monthly income 537,375
Yearly tncome $448,500
Vacancy/Loss {10%) {567,275}
Potential Gross Income §361,225
Expenses (5171,551)
Net Operating Income $209,674
Cap Rate of 13% $1,612,875
SEV/TV 806,438

Potential Taxes $54,926



FROM: DCED DATE: 2/4/2020
REQUESTOR DATE REQUIRED: 2/10/2020

DEPARTMENT: Community and Economic Development

DOCUMENT REQUIRING APPROVAL: "THE GRAND" PILOT APPLICATION

The below signed Department has reviewed and approved the attached PILOT application as presented. Through its
approval, the Department is approving that a PILOT Ordinance will be prepared and routed.

Approval: CED

The attached document is approved by the Director of the Department. By signing, the
Director acknowledges that they are aware of and authorizes this document to be approved and
an ordinance resolution to be prepared and routed.

i
By: Suzanne Wilcox R P T/ DATE: /= /s0

Director, Planning & Develgpment\

_ J Approval: Zoning _
The attached document is approved by the Director of the Department. By signing, the
Director acknowledges that they are aware of and authorizes this document to be approved and

an ordinance resolution to be prepared and routgd.
By: w /L_._—-" DATE: 'L/;'L/"DD

Zoning Coordinator »
Approval: Planning Division

The attached document is approved by the Director of the Department. By signing, the
Director acknowledges that they are aware of and authorizes this document to be approved and

an ordinance resolution to be prepared jmd royted.
By: Adam Moore -MK f\ DATE: R /12)Le

Lead Planner/Planner I1I TN ATV
Approval: Assesor _
The attached document is approved by the Director of the Department. By signing, the

Director acknowledges that they are aware of and authorizes this document to be approved and
an ordinance resolution to be prepared and routed.

By: Stacey Kaake
Assessor

Appfroval: Finance
The attached document is approved by the Director of the Department. By signing, the
Director acknowledges that they are aware of and authorizes this document to be approved and
an ordinance resolution to be prepared and routed.

P 0 ; .
By: Amanda Trujilio e A LL&"\C*’{' 0 DATE: 2. \>/ 2030

Acting Chief Financial Officer

Approval: Administrator

The attached document is approved by the Director of the Department. By signing, the
Director acknowledges that they are aware of and authorizes this document to be approved and
an ordinance resolution to be prepared and routed.

By: Clyde Edwards
City Adminstrator




The Grand on University, 422 W University Ave tax comparisons

1) Current taxahbie generated: $1,100 Pilot is based on 4%
2} PALOT estimation $16,631.24 DIFFERENCE BETWEEN PILOT AND AD VALOREM TAX 438,355 peryear

Based on the Schedule of Rents provided by Communities First, inc., at 100% accupancy, given its rental rates for households at 30%,
40%, and 60% of AMI, the total annual rent potential for the 48 units is $415,781,

3} £stimated project ad valorum taxable value:

One Bedroom Two Bedroom  Three Bedroom
Market Rent 4600 $875 $1,000
Number of Units 20 1 7
$12,000 $18,375 $7,000
Monthly Income $37,375
Yearly Income 5448500
Vacancy/Loss {10%) {567,275)
Potential Gross Income $381,225
Expenses {$171,551)
Net Operating Income $209,674
Cap Rate of 13% $1,612,875
SEV/TV 806,438

Potential Taxes $54,986



The Grand on University {Previously University Park Apartments)

Address and Parcel:
422 W University Ave, 40-12-457-008

Current Owner:

Giselle Farrah Trust

*CFl has a Purchase Option on the property through March 1, 2020.

Applicant: Communities First, Inc.

Requested PILOT: 4% (a reduction over previous applications)
(Reguested a 6% PILOT when called University Park)

Unit Mix:

One-Bedroom Units: 20

Two-Bedroom Units: 21

Three- Bedroom Units: 7

Plus, 3,300 sq. ft. of commercial space that will front Grand Traverse St.

Construction Start Date: July 2020

*Note: Prior applications failed- once in 2018 and agoin in 2019.



Property Information _

40-12-457-008 422 W UNIVERSITY AVE

Subdivision:

FLINT MI, 48503 Block:
NamelInformation - G S
Owner: FARAH, GISELE TRUST Phone:
Occupant: Phone;
Fiter: COMMUNITIES FIRST, INC Phone: {810) 422 5358
Date Filed: 08/06/2019 Date Closed: 08/20/2019 Status:  Approved
Complaint

ZBA 19-2228 USE VARIANCE, MULTI-USE, MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
HEARING DATE: 8/20/19
OUTCOME: APPROVED

Last Action Date: tast Inspection;
Last Action:




40-12-457-008 422 W UNIVERSITY AVE Subdivision:
FLINT MI, 48503 Lot: Block:

Owner: FARAH, GISELE TRUST Phone:
Occupant: Phone:
Fler: GLENN WILSON Phone:  (810) 422 5358
Dabe Fued. 09!25/2019 Date Closed: Status:  Paid
Complaint;

PLANNING COMMISSION SITE PLAN REVIEW
Last Action Date: Last Inspection:

Last Action:




2142020 422 University Ave - Google Maps

Go gie Maps 422 University Ave
GOOGLE MAPS SATELLITE VIEW

422 University Ave
Flint, M1 48503
Directions Save Nearby  Sendtoyour  Share

phone

» <+ 2B92+R7 Flint, Michigan

Photos

hitps./iwww.google .com/maps/place/422+University+Ave, +Flint, +Mi+48503/@43.0196946,-83 698604 4 11m/data=13m111e34m1311m713m6! 1s0xB82...  1/1



21412020 CONNECTExplorer™
CONNECTEXPLORER

map: Aule [Orthat Dates AR

hitps:/fexplorer pictometry.comfindex.php?utm source=POL&utm medium=Graphic&utm campaign=Login 111



* PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES

(PILOT)
APPLICATION

ITY OF FLINT

1101 S SAGINAW ST.
FLINT, M| 48502
TEL: 810-766-7436




PURPOSE

To administer the City of Flint Code of Ordinances 18-4.1 to 18-4.8, establishing a class of housing
developments pursuant to the State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, known as Act 436 of
the Acts of 1966, being MCLA §§ 125.1401 et seq. , as amended, which are exempt from property taxes,
paying instead a service charge to be paid in lieu of taxes (PILOT) by any or all classes of housing exempt
from taxation under this Act at any amount it chooses, but not to exceed the taxes that would be paid
for if not for this Act.

The City acknowledges that serving persons of low income is a public necessity, and as such the City of
Flint will be benefited and improved by such housing, the encouragement of the same by providing
certain real estate tax exemption for such housing is a valid public purpose. The applicant for a PILOT is
affirming that the economic feasibility of this housing development is reliant on this requested tax
exemption.

Furthermore, in considering this application for PILOT, the evaluators of such request shall consider that
the community shall be developed in @ manner consistent with the adopted Master Plan and
Consolidated Action Plan. Evaluation of the application should take into consideration maintaining the
overall goals and objectives set forth in these plans.

ELIGIBILTY

1) Applicant must be a nonprofit housing corporation, consumer housing cooperative, limited dividend
housing corporation, mobile home park cooperative or mobile home park association, and must be
financed with a federally-aided or Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) aided
mortgage or advance or grant from MSHDA.

2) PILOT has been requested during the planning stage of the project; any development project under
construction at the time of application is not eligible to apply for, or to receive, a PILOT.

3) The applicant must own the property or have an option or other right to purchase the property under
consideration and provide in application.

4) Housing development must contain a minimum of 51% affordable units.
5) Project includes a Low Income Housing Tax Credit {LIHTC) aliocation.
6) The property is not desighated as a Brownfield or 5/50 property.

7) All parcels that are separate have heen combined through proper City channels.




PROCESS

1) Mandatory Pre-Application Conference: This will be a meeting of all applicable City Departments to
inciude:

City Administrator

City Planner

City Engineer

City Treasurer

City Assessor

Chief Building Official

Community and Economic Development Staff
Representatives of applicant development team

This meeting will serve to familiarize all parties with the scope of the project and any issues that may
exist, The applicant will aiso be familiarized with the PILOT process and policies.

2) Submission of Application: Application form must be complete and packet of required supporting
documentation assembled based upon requirements set forth in the application. Any additional
concerns or items that were discussed in the Pre-Application Conference should also be addressed.
Application forms are available on both the City of Flint website and in the Department of Community
and Economic Development.

One original and one electronic copy shall be submitted no later than seven (7} weeks before the
Regular City Council meeting, which are typically held on the 2™ and 4" Mondays of each month.

3} Internal (Administrative) Review: An internal review will occur, resulting in either Administrative
approval within three {3) weeks or return to the applicant for corrections.

Applications will be scored on a scoring matrix as attached in this application.

Administrative approval will move the application forward to an ordinance amendment that will be
placed on the Government Operation Committee meeting agenda.

4) Council Committee Review: Meetings are held the Wednesday prior to the Regular City Council
meeting. The developer is required to be in attendance at this meeting to answer any questions the
committee may have.

5) Review by City Council: Once committee approval is obtained, the ordinance amendment will
proceed to the following Regular City Council Meeting (the Monday following committee). The
developer is required to be in attendance at this meeting.

6) Approval: If the PILOT application is approved by resolution of the City Council, a certified copy of the
resolution and a copy of the minutes will be provided to the applicant. Additionally, digital copies will be
provided to all applicable City Departments.

*Note; All applicants are required to file their MISDA affidavit with the City Assessor by November 1 of
the year before the PILOT is to take effect.




APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

1) Completed Application Form
2) Narrative:

a. Background information:
i. Development experience of team

Please see attached resumes for Communitios First, Inc. and RAD Conversion
Specialists, L1

it. Describe the corporate partnership structure

Please see attached proposed organization chart.

b. Describe the proposed Project {include the following sections): We are requesting a 4% PILOT.
i. Intended usage/target market — Low and moderate incame individuals and families in
Geneses County.

ii. Economic impact ~ At this time, we do not have final pricing but we expect the groject
to cost over 513 million with a targe multiplier effect from construction and iong term
ecenomic impact to local businesses in the immediate walking area [Carriage Town and
University Avenue Corridor). Additionally, the profect will ikely create hundreds of
construction jobs and additional jobs {or property a management office and
maintenance staffing and contracts,

iii. Environmental impact {to include any mitigation actions taken) Prics to financing, we
will complete a Phase [ ESA, but we do not expect there to be any Recognized
Environmental Conditions,

iv. Impact on City infrastructure (transportation and utilities) We expeci residents to
utitize focal public transit and walk for majority of transportation needs {We expect this
project to increase the watkability of the area though increasing density and demand for
focal amenities). We plan to utilize public utilities. This project will help make Flint
more atlractive for business investment and people by emphasizing a live, work, and
play atmosphere due to its location near downtown and lacal amenities.

v. impact on City services {police, fire, EMS, code enforcement) We expect the local
area to be much safer and to incentivize investment by homeowners and busingss
owners in the neighborhood. Increasing the density will help activate the area with
more residents to deter nearby criminal activity and utilize local businesses and other
amenities. We expect nearby property vatues to increase and more local investment
and activity, enlarging the tax base and providing more resources for City services.

vi. Square footage of the building and iand to be renovated Building is new construction
and total sguare footage hasg not bean determined.

vii. Architectural renderings to include the number and type of units - Planned unit mix
- twenty {20} one-bedroom units; twenty-one (21) two-bedroom units; and seven (7)
{forty-eight (48) total units}; See attached site concept plan.

viii. Any other information to fully explain the project




c. Describe the marketing of the project, clearly identifying the intended market. If the project is
speculative, how long is full occupancy expected to take and who will be the property manager?

The Project will be marketed through local media advertising, as well as word of mouth.
Given current demand for housing in Flint, we expect full occupancy to take approximately 4 to
& months,

d. Briefly describe the ownership and tax information for this project:
i. State the location or the proposed project to include street address, parcel ID, and the
legal description. Address: 422 W. University Ave..; Parcel 1D: 40-12-457-008; Legal
Description: MCFARLAN & CO'S WESTERN ADDITION LOTS 5, 8, 10, 13 AND 14; ALSO S1Y 33
FTOFLOTSOAND 11, ALSOWILY X OF LOTS 7 AND S B8LK 38

ii. Name of the property owner at the time of application. Gisele Farah Trust

iii. If the applicant is not the current owner of record, attach a valid optien to purchase.
see Attached Option to Purchase Real Estate Agreement, dated March 18, 2019 and Qption to
Purchase Real Estate Agreement Amendment, dated March 18, 2019,

iv. Describe any and all financing, options, and liens on the property We are not aware
of any liens on the property. We plan to finance the development through low income housing
tax credit equity, debt, and grant funds,

v. State the current assessed value of the property. 553,400.00,

vi. Are any assessments currently under appeal? If yes, describe. We are not aware of
any assessment appeals.

e. Provide a detailed development pro forma outlining proposed hard, soft and financing costs
associated with the development. Pro forma must also identify all sources of financing and
terms, including Applicant equity, construction, and permanent financing, as well as any
government assistance. Proposals must contain detailed cost breakdowns. Please see attached
sources and uses of funds.

f. Provide a detailed operating pro forma. This must include all anticipated major revenues and
expenses for the full term of the requested PILOT. Piease see attached 15-year operating
proforma. Alonger term forecast proforma can be provided upon request.

g. Provide a detailed schedule of rents and income limits of lessees Please see attached rent
schedule with income targeting and unit mix,

h. Provide housing market data to show demand.

See Imagine Flint Master Plan. We have not done a market study but given current demand for
rental units in the area and Fint, there is adequate demand for the rmuitifamily apariments,
aspecially near downtown Fint,

i. State a proposed timeline for the Project to include:
i. Closing of the loan or contributing financing July 2020
ii. First expenditure of funds with regards to the project lanuary 2019




iit. Anticipated date construction will begin July 2020
iv. Anticipated date of completion August 2070

i- Describe any potential conflicts of interest the applicant or any guarantor may have with any
City Personnei or City Council members. We are not aware of any conflicts of interest.

k. To receive application bonus points, address the following:

i. Mixed use (PILOT ONLY applies to housing- not commercial SF) The proposed project is
mixed use {residential and commercial } and is expected to contain almost 3,300 square feet of
commercial space fronting Grand Traverse St. {along with 48 residential apartment units).

ii. Energy efficiency and green practices Project will be certified by Enterprise Green
Communities,

ili. Neighborhood and block club outreach (Full list of outreach done)

We have had several meetings with neighborhood residents and the neighborhood
association, including attendance at & board meeting,

iv. External amenities (walk score, proximity to transit, jobs, etc.)

the property’s Walkscore is 52, however it is within 1/3 of mile of an 81 walkscore and
downtown Fling, and just under ¥ mile from Hurley Hospital, Additionally, we expect
the walkscore to increase dramatically once the property is placed in service. The
property is located in the Carriage Town Historic District, one block away from Factory 1.

I. Include a copy of the completed MSHDA application for Low Income Housing Tax Credits
(LIHTC) within thirty {30} days of submittal to MSHDA.




(APPLICATION FORM ON NEXT PAGE- ATTACH APPLICATION
FORM TO THE REQUIRED NARRATIVES AND SUPPORTING

DOCUMENTS)

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILOT) APPLICATION

CITY OF FLINT

APPLICANT INFORMATION
ENTITY NAME Communities First, Inc. on behalf of GM LDHA LP
REPRESENTATIVES Glenn A. Wiison
NAME
ADDRESS 415 West Court Street, Flint, M| 48503
TELEPHONE 810 422 5358
NUMBER
E-MAIL ADDRESS gwilson@communitiesfirstinc.org

GUARANTORS INFORMATION

ENTITY NAME Communities First, Inc.

ENTITY PRINCIPAL

ADDRESS 415 West Court Street, Flint, M) 48503
TELEPHONE 810422 5358

NUMBER

E-MAIL ADDRESS

gwilson@communitiesfirstinc.org

ENTITY NAME RAD Conversion Specialists, {1C.

ENTITY PRINCIPAL Eric Gold

ADDRESS 32500 Telegraph, #222, Bingham Farms, M| 48025
TELEPHONE 248 203 0011

NUMBER

E-MAIL ADDRESS

egold @slavikenterprises.com




PROJECT INFORMATION

PROJECT NAME The Grand on University
ADDRESS OF PROJECT | 422 W. University Ave.
PARCEL ID 40-12-457-008

LEGAL DESCRIPTION MCFARLAN & CO'S WESTERN ADDITION LOTS 5, 8, 10, 13 AND
14: ALSOSLY 33 FTOF LOTS 6 AND 11; ALSO WLY ¥ OF LOTS 7
AND 9. BLK 38

Parcel 1I); 40-12-457-008

DEVELOPMENT TEAM
APPLICANT PRIMARY POINT Communities First, Inc.
OF CONTACT
ARCHITECTURAL FIRM | Sedgewick + Ferweda Architects
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT TBD
MANAGER
GENERAL CONTRACTOR FOR 78D
PROJECT

Applicant js to attach items a-1 as required in the narrative portion of the application.

a. Background information See Above

b. Project description See Above

¢. Project marketing/target market See Above

d. Ownership description/tax information See Above
e. Detailed development pro forma Attached

f. Operating pro forma Attached

g. Schedule of rents/income levels Attached

h. Housing market data supporting demand See Above
i. Proposed project timeline See Above

J- Conflicts of interest See Above

k. Application bonus point items See Above

}. MSHDA application for LIHTC credits N/A




QUALITY OF LIFE
STARTS WITH
COMMUNITY.

COMMUNITIES -, INC.




Communities First, Inc. Overview

Communities First, Inc. (CFI) is a Michigan nonprofit 501¢3 whose mission is to build
healthy, vibrant communities through economic development, affordable housing and
innovative programming. The organization is focused on providing safe, quality affordable
housing, increasing economic opportunities, and improving quality of life. The motto of
Communities First, Inc. is “Empowering People. Building Communities”, which speaks to a
desire to create social equity, improve quality of life for residents and to improve the built
environment.

Affordable Housing

In Flint, Michigan, CFI is the developer of Oak Street Senior Apartments. The $5.1 million
project provides 24 units of safe, affordable housing for low income seniors in the
downtown Flint area. Oak School was originally built in 1898 and has been preserved and
repurposed. This project is energy efficient, sustainable and is Enterprise Green
Communities certified. Communities First, Inc. is also developer of the historic Swayze
Apartments in Flint. This vacant and blighted building was renovated into 36 apartments
for people who are homeless, at risk of homelessness or who have special needs. This $8.1
million project has been funded by the Michigan State Housing Development Authority,
City of Flint and others.

Coolidge Park Apartments is the most recent housing development undertaken by the
organization. Coolidge School was closed in 2011 due to declining enrollment and
Communities First, Inc. has secured the bulk of the funding to begin the redevelopment of
the site. When complete, the Coolidge development will consist of 54 units (both market
rate and affordable), a community center in the gymnasium and more than 8,000 square feet
of commercial space.

Economic Development

Communities First, Inc. recognizes that it is important for residents of distressed
communities to have increased employment opportunities. The housing that CFI has
developed created more than 200 well-paying jobs for local workers, some of whom have
barriers to employment, were low income and/or minorities. CFI has been successful in
securing more than $30 million in federal, state and local grant funds for projects in the
Flint community. Mixed use projects and other programs are being planned to provide
further opportunities for economic development.

Communities First, Inc. participated in a pilot HUD program and became a SPI-HUD
Accredited Green Organization. This accreditation is a reflection of CFI’s commitment to
green building practices and operations. Each of the development projects that Communities
First, Inc. is a part of will be designed, constructed and operated with sustainability and
environmentally friendly practices in mind. It is the opinion of the organization that this






